The "Six-Step" Parity Compliance Guide

NQTL WORKSHEETS

Contents

Prior Authorization	1
Concurrent Review	8
Retrospective Review	15
Outlier Review	22
Coding Edits	29
Medical Necessity Criteria	36
OON Coverage Standards	43
Geographic Restrictions	50
Experimental/Investigational Determinations	57
Exclusions for Court-Ordered Treatment or Involuntary Holds	64

Fail-First Protocols71	
Failure to Complete/Initiate78	
Provider Reimbursement	
UCR Determination92	
Provider Credentialing99	
Certification Requirements106	
Unlicensed Provider/Staff Requirements 113	
Provider Type Exclusions	
Formulary Design	









Prior Authorization

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which prior authorization applies.	[List the services to which prior authorization applies]					

Prompt In network Out-of-network In network Out-of-network Benefits Drugs Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question] Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question] Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question] Provide the Step 1 documentation answer the question] Provide the Step 1 doc		Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
and associated procedures1 documentation and answer the question]1 documentation and answer the question]1 documentation and answer the question]documentation and answer the question]documentation answer the question]documentation answer the question]documentatio	Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network		
	 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the prior authorization procedures for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. Are the required qualifications/training for persons performing prior authorization review for MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits comparable? If not, provide a rationale (i.e., state law 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and

Prompt	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]				
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of prior authorization for the identified MH/ SUD benefits as were used for medical/ surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
 Examples of factors for determining that prior authorization is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive): Excessive utilization Recent medical cost escalation Lack of adherence to quality standards High levels of variation in length of stay High variability in cost per episode of care Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service Provider discretion in determining diagnoses Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors: • Internal claims analyses • Internal quality standard studies • Expert medical review						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the prior authorization protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the prior authorization protocols for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						
Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evidence considered in designing and applying its prior authorization protocols such as recognized medical literature, professional standards and protocols (including comparative effectiveness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild associations or other third-party entities, publicly available or proprietary clinical definitions, and outcome metrics from consulting or other organizations.						
Examples of evidentiary standards and their sources are provided in the toolkit.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrating that the processes and strategies used to design the prior authorization protocols, as written, for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the prior authorization protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not limited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifications of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrating that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing prior authorization for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing prior authorization for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consultations with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, reviewer discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs		
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]							
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose prior authorization on MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose prior authorization on medical/ surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authorizaiton is imposed.								



Concurrent Review

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Ponofita	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which concurrent review applies.	[List the services to which concurrent review applies]					

	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and			
 Describe the concurrent review procedures for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/ surgical benefits. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. 	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]
 Are the required qualifications/training for persons performing concurrent review for MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits comparable? If not, provide a rationale (i.e., state law requirements, etc.) 						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of concurrent review for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that concurrent review is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
High levels of variation in length of stay						
• High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
 Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud 						
 Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the concurrent review protocols for MH/SUD ben- efits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the concurrent review protocols for medical/surgical bene- fits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						
Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evidence considered in designing and applying its con- current review protocols such as recognized medical literature, professional standards and protocols (including comparative effective- ness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild associations or other third-party entities, publicly available or pro- prietary clinical definitions, and outcome met- rics from consulting or other organizations. Examples of evidentiary standards and their sources are provided in the toolkit.						

_	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the concurrent review protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the concurrent review protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing concurrent review for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing concurrent review for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose concurrent review on MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose concurrent review on medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authorizaiton is imposed.						



Retrospective Review

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which concurrent review applies.	[List the services to which retrospective review applies]					

	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the retrospective review pro- cedures for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					
 Are the required qualifications/training for persons performing retrospective review for MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits comparable? If not, provide a rationale (i.e., state law requirements, etc.) 						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]				
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of retrospective review for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that retrospective review is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
High levels of variation in length of stay						
• High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
 Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud 						
 Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

Prompt	Inpatier	Inpatient Benefits		ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
tep 3: Identify and describe evidentiary tandards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
rovide the comparative analysis demon- trating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any ther evidence relied upon to establish the etrospective review protocols for MH/SUD enefits are comparable to and applied no nore stringently than the evidentiary stan- ard(s) used to define factors and any other vidence relied upon to establish the retro- pective review protocols for medical/surgical enefits. Describe evidentiary standards that vere considered, but rejected.						
lease note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". videntiary standards also include all evi- ence considered in designing and applying is retrospective review protocols such as ecognized medical literature, professional tandards and protocols (including com- iarative effectiveness studies and clinical rials), published research studies, treatment uidelines created by professional guild asso- iations or other third-party entities, publicly vailable or proprietary clinical definitions, and utcome metrics from consulting or other rganizations. xamples of evidentiary standards and their ources are provided in the toolkit.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the retrospective review protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the retrospective review protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing retrospective review for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing retrospec- tive review for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose retrospective review on MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose retrospective review on medical/surgi- cal benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authorizaiton is imposed.						



Outlier Review

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which concurrent review applies.	[List the services to which outlier review applies]					

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatier	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the outlier review procedures for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. Are the required qualifications/training for persons performing outlier review for MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits comparable? If not, provide a rationale (i.e., state law requirements, etc.) 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of outlier review for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that outlier review is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
High levels of variation in length of stay						
• High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
• Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud						
 Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the butlier review protocols for MH/SUD bene- fits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the outlier review pro- tocols for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						
Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evidence considered in designing and applying its outlier review protocols such as recognized medical literature, professional standards and protocols (including comparative effective- ness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild associations or other third-party entities, publicly available or pro- prietary clinical definitions, and outcome met- rics from consulting or other organizations. Examples of evidentiary standards and their						
sources are provided in the toolkit.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the outlier review protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the process- es and strategies used to design the outlier review protocols, as written, for medical/surgi- cal benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing outlier review for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing outlier review for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose outlier review on MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringent- ly than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose outlier review on medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authori- zaiton is imposed.						

Coding Edits



(e.g. requiring providers to limit bill codes that could otherwise be applicable)

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which the coding edits apply. For example, if same-day claims for certain services are prohibited pursuant to a claims edit.	[List the services to which coding edits apply]					

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and					
• Describe the coding edit protocols for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements.	answer the question]					
 Are the required qualifications/training for persons performing coding edits for MH/ SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits comparable? If not, provide a rationale (i.e., state law requirements, etc.) 						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability ofcoding edits for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that coding edits are appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
High levels of variation in length of stay						
• High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
• Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud						
 Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

	Inpatien	it Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the coding edit protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the coding edit pro- tocols for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						
Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evidence considered in designing and applying its cod- ing edit protocols such as recognized medical literature, professional standards and protocols (including comparative effectiveness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild associations or other third-party entities, publicly available or proprietary clinical defini- tions, and outcome metrics from consulting or other organizations.						
Examples of evidentiary standards and their sources are provided in the toolkit.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription Drugs
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the coding edit protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the process- es and strategies used to design the coding edit protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]			
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing coding edits for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing coding edits for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to imposecoding edits on MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringent- ly than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose coding edits on medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authori- zaiton is imposed.						
Medical Necessity Criteria



Development/Modification/Addition of Medical Necessity/ Medical Appropriateness/Level of Care Guidelines

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the medical necessity criteria within each classification of benefits. If the medical necessity criteria is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for the medical necessity criteria for each benefit package.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which the medical necessity applies. Medical necessity will also apply as a component of the application of prior authorization, concurrent review, retrospective review, outlier review, and appeals. However, it must be analyzed as a separate NQTL.	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]	[List the services which the medical necessity criteria is relied upon during utilization review]

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
NA (proceed to steps 3-6)						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
NA (proceed to steps 3-6)						

In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Emergency Benefits	Prescription Drugs
[Provide the Sten ?			Out-or-network		Diugs
documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design the medical necessity criteria as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]			
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the medical necessity criteria, as written for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the medical necessity criteria, as written, for medi- cal/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of the medical necessity criteria in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in applying the medical necessity criteria, in operation, to MH/SUD benefits are compa- rable and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in applying the medical necessity criteria, in operation, to medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies used in applying the medical necessity criteria may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consultations with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in applying the criteria, reviewer discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reason- ably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						
A key indicator for determining if the medical necessity criteria has been applied comparaby and no more stringently may be an examina- tion and comparison of interrater reliability audits for MH/SUD and medical/surgical utilzation reviewers.						

	Inpatier	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the medical necessity criteria for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the pro- cesses, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the medical necessity criteria for medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which uti- lization reveiw is performed involving the use of the medical necessity criteria.						

OON Coverage Standards



Standards for out-of-network coverage (OON)

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) to which the OON coverage applies.	N/A	[List the services that are covered out-of- network]	N/A	[List the services that are covered out-of- network]	N/A	N/A

Prompt In network Out-of-ne	etwork In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Emergency Prescription Benefits Drugs
				Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures N/A IProvide the documentat answer the of the coverage of OON services. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. N/A IProvide the documentat answer the of the coverage determination protocols? What are the required qualifications/training for persons implementing the OON coverage determination protocols? IProvide the documentat answer the of the coverage determination protocols?	ation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]	N/A	N/A

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
NA (proceed to steps 3-6)						

	Inpatie	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	N/A
standards and other evidence relied upon Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to develop the OON approval protocols for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to the eviden- tiary standards used to develop the OON ap- proval protocols for medical/surgical benefits.		documentation]		documentation]		

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatio	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	N/A
design NQTL as written Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the OON approval protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringent than the processes and strategies used to design the OON approval protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits. These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national		documentation		documentation		
treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatio	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing OON approval protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable and no more stringent than the processes and strate- gies used in operationalizingthe OON approv- al protocols for medical surgical benefits.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the OON approval protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the pro- cesses, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the OON ap- proval protocols for medical/surgical benefits in each applicable classification of benefits.						

Geographic Restrictions



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) for which there are standards for out-of-area-coverage	N/A	[List the services for which out-of-area coverage is provided]	N/A	[List the services for which out-of-area cov- erage is provided]	N/A	N/A

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the procedures that must be followed for the coverage of out-of-area services. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons implementing the out-of-area coverage determination protocols? 	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]	N/A	N/A

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
NA (proceed to steps 3-6)						

	Inpatie	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to develop the out-of-area approval protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to the evidentiary standards used to develop the out-of-area approval protocols for medical/ surgical benefits.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the out-of-area approval protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringent than the processes and strategies used to design the out-of-area approval protocols, as written, for medical/ surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing out-of-area approval proto- cols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable and no more stringent than the processes and strategies used in operationalizingthe out-of- area approval protocols for medical/surgical benefits.						

_	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	N/A
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the out-of-area approval protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringent- ly than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and apply the out-of-area approval protocols for medical/surgical benefits in each applicable classification of benefits.						

Experimental/Investigational Determinations



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) which have been subject to review to determine if they are experimental or investigational.	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimental or inves- tigational]	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimental or investigational]	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimental or investigational]	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimen- tal or investigational]	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimental or investigational]	[List the services or items that have been reviewed to determine if they are experimen- tal or investigational]

	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Benefit/Service(s) to which the an approval protocols for experimental/investigational service coverage applies. • What are the required qualifications/train- ing for persons that review services, items, and medications to determine if they are experimental or investigational?	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to identify services, items, or medications for review to determine if they are experimen- tal or investigational, for MH/SUD benefits and for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define a factor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to determine if a service, item, or medication is experimental are comparable and applied no more strin- gently for MH/SUD benefits and medical/sur- gical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the processes and strategies used to determine whether services, items, or medications are deemed experimental or in- vestigational, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringent than the processes and strategies used to deter- mine whether services, items, or medications are deemed experimental or investigational, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing any experimental or inves- tigational restrictions or limitations for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable and no more stringent than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing any experimental or investigational restrictions or limitations for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consul- tations with expert reviewers, clinical ratio- nale used in approving or denying benefits, reviewer discretion, and adherence to criteria hierarchy and written protocols.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to determine if services, items, or medications are experimental or investigational for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used todetermine if services, items, or medications are experimental or investigational for med- ical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits.						

Exclusions for Court-Ordered Treatment or Involuntary Holds



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Identify any benefits subject to a blanket coverage exclusion if ordered by a court. If all court-ordered benefits are excluded from coverage indicate as such and specify whether this is the case for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/surgical benefits or not. The plan or issuer need not complete the six steps if this is the case.	[List the services or items that are exclud- ed because they are court ordered or the result of an involun- tary hold]	[List the services or items that are exclud- ed because they are court ordered or the result of an involun- tary hold]	[List the services or items that are exclud- ed because they are court ordered or the result of an involun- tary hold]	[List the services or items that are exclud- ed because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold]	[List the services or items that are excluded because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold]	[List the services or items that are excluded because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold]
If there are no benefits subject to a blanket coverage exclusion if ordered by a court indicate as such and do not complete the six steps.						

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the procedures in place for any benefits that is subject to a court ordered treatment or involuntary hold exclusion. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons implementing the exclusion? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to identify benefits that will not be covered because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold for MH/SUD benefits and for medical/surgical benefits. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define a factor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to determine that a MH/SUD benetif will not be covered because it is court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold are comparable to and ap- plied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define a factor and any other evidence relied upon to determine that a medical/surgical benefit will not be covered because it is court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold. Describe evidentiary stan- dards that were considered, but rejected.						

	Inpatien	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the processes and strategies used to determine whether services, items, or medications will not be covered because they are court ordered or the result of an invol- untary hold, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to determine whether services, items, or medications will not be covered because they are court-ordered or the result of an invol- untary holds, as written, for medical/surgical benefits. These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica-						
tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strat- egies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to determine if MH/SUD beneifts are excluded because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold are comparable to and ap- plied no more stringently than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used todetermine if medical/surgical benefits are excluded because they are court ordered or the result of an involuntary hold.						



Fail-First Protocols (Step Therapy)

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

_	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription Drugs
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	
Benefit/Service(s) which require the beneficiary to have tried and failed a lower level of care prior to coverage.	[List the services to which fail-first proto- cols apply]	[List the services to which fail-first protocols apply]	[List the services to which fail-first proto- cols apply]			
	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
--	--	--	--	--	--	--
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the fail first procedures. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons determining which benefits shall be subject to a fail-first requirement? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of fail-first protocols for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that a fail-first protocol is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
High levels of variation in length of stay						
High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud						
Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the fail-first protocols for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more strin- gently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the fail-first proto- cols for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected						
Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evidence considered in designing and applying its fail- first protocols such as recognized medical lit- erature, professional standards and protocols (including comparative effectiveness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild associations or other third-party entities, publicly available or proprietary clinical defini- tions, and outcome metrics from consulting or other organizations. Examples of evidentiary standards and their sources are provided in the toolkit.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the fail-first protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the fail-first pro- tocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits. These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing fail-first protocols for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing fail-first protocols for medical surgical benefits.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose fail-first protocols on MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose fail-first protocols on medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which fail-first protocols are imposed.						

Failure to Complete/Initiate



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) which require the beneficiary to have completed a prior course of treatment or initiated a specific course of treatment prior to coverage.	[List the services to which complete/ initiate first protocols apply]	[List the services to which complete/initiate first protocols apply]	[List the services to which complete/ initiate first protocols apply]			

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatier	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures. Describe the complete/initiate first procedures. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons determining which benefits shall be subject to a complete/initiate-first requirement? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine the applicability of complete/initi- ate first protocols for the identified MH/SUD benefits as were used for medical/surgical benefits, including the sources for ascertain- ing each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining that a complete/initiate first protocol is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
Excessive utilization						
Recent medical cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards						
• High levels of variation in length of stay						
• High variability in cost per episode of care						
Clinical efficacy of the proposed treatment or service						
Provider discretion in determining diagnoses						
Claims associated with a high percentage of fraud						
 Severity or chronicity of the MH/SUD condition 						
Examples of sources for data to identify factors:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to establish the complete/initiate first protocols for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to establish the complete/initiate first protocols for medical/ surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary stan- dards that were considered, but rejected. Please note, the term "evidentiary standards" is not limited to a means for defining "factors". Evidentiary standards also include all evi- dence considered in designing and applying its complete/initiate first protocols such as recognized medical literature, professional standards and protocols (including com- parative effectiveness studies and clinical trials), published research studies, treatment guidelines created by professional guild asso- ciations or other third-party entities, publicly available or proprietary clinical definitions, and outcome metrics from consulting or other organizations. Examples of evidentiary standards and their sources are provided in the toolkit.						

Drownt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the complete/initiate first protocols, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the complete/initiate first protocols, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription Drugs
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing complete/initiate first protocols for MH/SUD benefits are compara- ble to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in opera- tionalizing complete/initiate first protocols for medical surgical benefits. Processes and strategies may include, but are						
not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

	Inpatier	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strat- egies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose complete/initiate first protocols on MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the pro- cesses, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose complete/initiate first protocols on medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits in which complete/ initiate first protocols are imposed.						



Provider Reimbursement

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
N/A go to step 1	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures. Describe the provider reimbursement rate determination/negotiation procedures. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons implementing the provider reimbursement process? NOTE: MHPAEA does not require outcome parity in reimbursement rates. MHPAEA requires process parity in the establishment of reimbursement rates. 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Prompt Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL Provide the comparative analysis demonstrating that comparable factors are used to set the initial and final reimbursement rate for MH/SUD benefits and for medical/surgical benefits. Examples of factors for determining that a given reimbursement rate is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive): Market price Volume of service capacity Value-added services Geographic location Languages spoken Disability accomodations Multi-specialty co-location Community reputation Additional training/skills 	In network [Provide the Step 2 documentation]	Out-of-network	In network [Provide the Step 2 documentation]	Out-of-network [Provide the Step 2 documentation]		

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard used to support the application of a factor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence or data re- lied upon to set reimbursement rates for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary stan- dard used to support the application of a fac- tor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence or data relied upon to set reimbursement rates for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected. Examples of evidentiary standards, their sourc- es, and other evidence considered include: • Patient experience surveys • Provider professional profiles • Provider rating services • Word of mouth/reputation						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to set reimbursement rates, as written, for MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to set reimbursement rates, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing preliminary reimbursment rates and negotiating final reimbursement rates for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the pro- cesses and strategies used in operationalizing preliminary reimbursement rates and nego- tiating final reimbursement rates for medical surgical benefits. This shall include a compari- son of the negotiation processes between the plan and providers as well as any processes in place for adjusting rates for MH/SUD providers and the negotiation processes between the plan and providers as well as any processes in place for adjusting rates for medical/surgical providers.						

<u>_</u>	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to determine reimbursement rates for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to set reimbursement rates for medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits.						



UCR Determination

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Under which circumstances are providers paid the UCR?	N/A		N/A		N/A	N/A

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatier	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and
 Describe the UCR procedures. Include each step in the UCR process. 	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]	answer the question]
 What are the required qualifications/train- ing for persons who create and implement the UCR process? 						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors that are used to set the UCR for MH/SUD benefits and for medical/surgical benefits. Examples of factors for determining that the UCR is appropriate include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive): • Market price • Volume of service capacity • Value-added services • Geographic location • Languages spoken • Disability accomodations • Multi-specialty co-location • Community reputation • Additional training/skills						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard used to sup- port the application of a factor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence or data relied upon to set the UCR for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more strin- gently than the evidentiary standard used to support the application of a factor identified in Step 2 and any other evidence or data re- lied upon to set the UCR for medical/surgical benefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected. Examples of evidentiary standards, their sourc- es, and other evidence considered include: • Patient experience surveys • Provider professional profiles • Provider rating services • Word of mouth/reputation						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]			
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to set the UCR, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to set the UCR, as written, for medical/ surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

Prompt In network Out-of-network In network Out-of-network Benefits	Prescription
	Drugs
	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing UCR payments for MH/SDD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing UCR payments for medical surgical benefits.	

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to determine reimbursement rates for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to set reimbursement rates for medical/surgical benefits in each classification of benefits.						

Provider Crendentialing



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Providers for which provider credentialing applies. Simply state "all in-network providers must be credentialed" and nothing else if that is the case.	List types of provid- ers and facilities that must go through the credentialing process for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/ surgical benefits.	N/A	List types of providers and facilities that must go through the credentialing process for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/ surgical benefits.	N/A	N/A	List types of providers and prescribers that must go through the credentialing process for both MH/SUD benefits and medical/ surgical benefits.

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and
• Describe the provider credentialing procedures. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements.	answer the question]		answer the question]			answer the question]
 What are the required qualifications/train- ing for persons implementing the provider credentialing process? 						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
NA (proceed to steps 3-6)						

Dromat	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and Provide Source for Evidence	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to create the credentialing procedures for MH/ SUD providers is comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to create the credentialing procedures for medical/surgical providers. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						

Dromot	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
rompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
tep 4: Processes and strategies used to esign NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
rovide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used b design the credentialing procedures, as irritten, for MH/SUD providers are comparable b and applied no more stringently than the rocesses and strategies used to design the redentialing procedures, as written, for medi- al/surgical provders.						
roceeses include, but are not limited to ne composition and deliberations of de- ision-making staff, the number of staff nembers allocated, time allocated, qualifica- ons of staff involved, breadth of sources and vidence considered, deviation from generally ccepted standards of care, consultations with anels of experts, and reliance on national eatment guidelines or guidelines provided y third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Describe the operation of the NQTL process in practice	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to implement the credentialing procedures, in operation, for MH/SUD providers are com- parable to and applied no more stringently than the processes and strategies used to implement the credentialing procedures, in operation, for medical/surgical provders.						
This includes the duration of the process, the documentaiton requests, the exceptions, stringency of analysis of submitted materials, fidelity of the credentialing system to the drafted process, as well as interrator reliability in the application of the credentialing process.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to design and implement the provider credentialing procedures for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strategies, evi- dentiary standards, and factors used to design and implement the provider credentialing procedures for medical/surgical benefits in each applicable classification of benefits.						

Certification Requirements



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatier	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription Drugs
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	
Benefit/Service(s) for which a requirement for provider certification in the absence of licensure applies. [Identify which benefits within this classification this NQTL applies to.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which provider cer- tification is required in absence of a license.]

Certification Requirements (continued)

	Inpatient	t Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the procedures the plan or issuer uses to determine whether and when to require specialized certifications in the absence of an applicable license. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/ training for persons determining whether to allow for licensure in the absence of a license? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					
	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
--	------------------------------------	------------------------------------	---------------------------------------	------------------------------------	---------------------------------------	---------------------------------------
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the factors used to determine whether and when to require specialized certification in the absence of an applicable license for MH/SUD providers are comparable to the factors used to determine when to require specialized certification in the absence of an applicable license for medical/surgical providers. List factors considered but rejected.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define a factor or other evidence relied upon to establish the certification requirements are for MH/SUD providers are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define a factor or other evidence relied upon to establish the certification requirements for medical/surgical providers. List evidentiary standards consid- ered but rejected. • What standards or evidence support(s) the rationale for applying the certification re- quirement to the(se) benefit(s) (e.g., practice guidelines, published research, data analysis, statistics)?						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to design the certification approval protocol, as written, for MH/SUD providers are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to design the certification approval protocol, as written, for medical/surgical providers						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing the certification approval protocol for MH/SUD providers are compara- ble to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in opera- tionalizing the certification approval protocol for medical surgical providers.						

_	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to establish certification requirements for MH/SUD providers are comparable to and ap- plied no more stringently than the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to establish certification requirements for medical/surgical providers in each classifica- tion of benefits.						

Unlicensed Provider/Staff Requirements



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Benefit/Service(s) for which the plan or issuer allows service provision by unlicensed/uncertified practitioners or staff. The NQTL analysis will involve the comparison of the requirements, processes, and procedures that apply to the provision of services by unlicensed/ uncertified providers.	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are ap- proval requirements in place unlicensed/un- certified practitioners or staff.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are approval require- ments in place unli- censed/uncertified practitioners or staff.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are approval require- ments in place unli- censed/uncertified practitioners or staff.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are ap- proval requirements in place unlicensed/un- certified practitioners or staff.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are approval requirements in place unlicensed/un- certified practitioners or staff.]	[Idenfity the services and/or provider types for which there are ap- proval requirements in place unlicensed/un- certified practitioners or staff.]

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the procedures the plan or issuer uses to determine whether and when to require specialized certifications in the absence of an applicable license. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/ training for persons determining whether to allow for licensure in the absence of a license? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]					

	Inpatien	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the factors used to determine the applicability of the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/staff approval requirements for MH/SUD providers are comparable to the factors used to determine the applicability of the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/ staff approval requirements for medical/ surgical providers. List factors considered but rejected.Examples of factors for determining that unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/ staff should be subject to the process include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive): • Compliance with credentialing requirements • Variability in provider/staff competency						

	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the standards or evidence that supports the rationale for applying the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/staff requirements to MH/SUD benefit(s) are com- parable and no more stringently applied than the standards or evidence that supports the rationale for applying the unlicensed/uncerti- fied practitioners/saff requirements to medi- cal/surgical benefits (e.g., practice guidelines, published research, data analysis, statistics)						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]			
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the proceesses and strategies used to design the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/staff approval requirements for MH/SUD benefits, as written, are compara- ble to and applied no more stringently than proceesses and strategies used to design the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/staff approval requirements, as written, for medical/ surgical benefits.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]					
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing the unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/staff approval requirements for MH/SUD providers are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing the un- licensed/uncertified practitioners/staff approv- al requirements for medical surgical providers. This must include discussion of the timelines and approval rates for MH/SUD unlicensed/ uncertified practitioners/staff in comparison to those for M/S unlicensed/uncertified practi- tioners/staff. It shoudl also include information on exceptions to the policy (if any) as well as information on the fidelity and consistency of the application of the process.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to establish unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/ staff approval requirements for MH/SUD providers are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to establish unlicensed/uncertified practitioners/ staff approval requirements for medical/surgi- cal providers in each classification of benefits.						

Provider Type Exclusions



Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package. If the NQTL is not applied to MH/SUD benefits within a classification, stop and do not complete the sheet for that benefit classification. Conversely, if the NQTL does not apply to medical/surgical benefits within a classification but is applied to MH/SUD benefits within that classification, the NQTL will violate MHPAEA and must either be eliminated or applied to medical/surgical benefits. See the accompanying guide for more information.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

_	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Identify, if any, the benefits/services for which the plan or issuer imposes categorical exclusions for certain provider types.	[List the benefits/ services for which cat- egorical exclusions are imposed for certain	[List the type of providers for which coverage is excluded.]	[List the type of providers for which coverage is excluded.]	[List the type of providers for which coverage is excluded.]	[List the type of provid- ers for which coverage is excluded.]	[List the type of provid- ers for which coverage is excluded.]
Identify, if any, the provider types for which the plan or issuer imposes categorical exclusions regardless of benefits/services involved.	provider types and list the types of providers for which coverage is always excluded.]					

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription Drugs
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	
 Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures Describe the procedures governing categorical exclusions of provider types. Include each step, associated triggers, timelines, forms and requirements. What are the required qualifications/training for persons determining that certain provider types will be excluded? 	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and answer the question]

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the factors used to determine the ap- plicability of a categorical exclusion of certain MH/SUD provider types are comparable to the factors used to determine the applicability of a categorical exclusion of certaub medical/ surgical provider types. List factors considered but rejected.Examples of factors for determin- ing that certain providers be subject to cate- gorical exclusions include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive): • State licensing laws/regulations • State corporate practice of medicine laws/ regulations • Historical beneficiary confusion about						
coverage of services by a provider Examples of sources for data to satisfy the factors for determining that a provider type exclusion is appropriate include: • Internal quality standard studies • Expert medical review						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the standards or evidence that sup- ports the rationale for applying a categorical exclusion of certain MH/SUD provider types are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the standards or evidence that supports the rationale for applying a cate- gorical exclusion of certain medical/surgical provider types. (e.g., practice guidelines, pub- lished research, data analysis, statistics)						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the proceesses and strategies used to design any categorical exclusions of certain MH/SUD provider types, as written, are com- parable to and applied no more stringently than proceesses and strategies used to design any categorical exclusions of certain medical/ surgical provider types, as written.	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]				

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used in operationalizing any categorical exclusions of certain MH/SUD provider types are com- parable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in operationalizing any categorical exclusions of certain medical surgical provider types.						

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]					
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose categorical exclusions of certain MH/ SUD provider types are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the pro- cesses, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose categorical exclusions of certain medical/surgical provider types in each classification of benefits.						



Formulary Design

Instructions: Complete a chart for the application of the NQTL to each classification of benefits. If the NQTL is applied differently for a different benefit package, complete charts for each NQTL for each benefit package.

Plan's Description of NQTL: Provide the documenation of and results of the comparative analyses that substantiate that the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors are comparable and no more stringently applied, as specified in each step.

	Inpatient	Benefits	Outpatie	nt Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
N/A proceed to step 1	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

	Inpatien	t Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 1: Describe the NQTL's requirements and associated procedures	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 1 documentation and
• Describe the Formulary Design procedures and requirement. Include each step, associ- ated triggers, timelines, forms and require- ments.						answer the question]
• What are the required qualifications/train- ing for persons developing and applying the formulary?						

	Inpatier	nt Benefits	Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 2: Describe the reason for applying the NQTL	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 2 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that comparable factors were used to determine how and wheter to include drugs on the formulary for MH/SUD medications as were used for medical/surgical medications, including the sources for ascertaining each of these factors. List factors that were relied upon but subsequently rejected and the rationale for rejecting those factors.						
Examples of factors for determining how and whether medications will be included on the formulary include (these examples are merely illustrative and not exhaustive):						
contract requirement						
Recent prescription drug cost escalation						
Lack of adherence to quality standards in prescribing						
 High levels of variation in prescribing practices 						
 High variability in cost per patient with similar diagnoses 						
 Prescriptions associated with a high percentage of fraud 						
What standards or evidence support(s) the ra- tionale for applying a formulary/PDL to the(se) benefit(s) (e.g., practice guidelines, published research, data analysis, statistics)?						
Examples of sources include:						
Internal claims analyses						
Internal quality standard studies						
Expert medical review						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatie	ent Benefits	Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 3: Identify and describe evidentiary standards and other evidence relied upon	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 3 documentation]
'Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors identified in Step 2 and any other evidence relied upon to develop the formulary for MH/SUD benefits are compara- ole to and applied no more stringently than the evidentiary standard(s) used to define factors and any other evidence relied upon to develop the formulary for medical/surgical onefits. Describe evidentiary standards that were considered, but rejected.						

	Inpatie	nt Benefits	Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
Prompt	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 4: Processes and strategies used to design NQTL as written	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 4 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demonstrat- ing that the processes and strategies used to formulary, as written, for MH/SUD benefits are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used to develop the formulary, as written, for medical/surgical benefits.						
These processes may include, but are not lim- ited to, the composition and deliberations of decision-making staff, e.g. the number of staff members allocated, time allocated, qualifica- tions of staff involved, breadth of sources and evidence considered, deviation from generally accepted standards of care, consultations with panels of experts, and reliance on national treatment guidelines or guidelines provided by third-party organizations.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 5: Processes in implementation of NQTL in operation	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 5 documentation]
Provide the comparative analysis demon- strating that the processes and strategies used in providing coverage for MH/SUD medications that are not on the formulary in certain instances are comparable to and no more stringently applied than the processes and strategies used in providing coverage for medical surgical medications in certain instances.						
Processes and strategies may include, but are not limited to, peer clinical review, consulta- tions with expert reviewers, clinical rationale used in approving or denying benefits, review- er discretion, adherence to criteria hierarchy, and the selection of information deemed reasonably necessary to make a medical necessity determination.						

Prompt	Inpatient Benefits		Outpatient Benefits		Emergency	Prescription
	In network	Out-of-network	In network	Out-of-network	Benefits	Drugs
Step 6: Summary conclusion of how plan or issuer has determined overall compliance	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	[Provide the Step 6 documentation]
Based on the responses provided in the steps above, please clearly summarize the basis for the plan or issuer's conclusion that both as written and in operation, the processes, strategies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose prior authorization on MH/ SUD benefits are comparable to and applied no more stringently than the processes, strate- gies, evidentiary standards, and factors used to impose prior authorization on medical/surgi- cal benefits in each classification of benefits in which prior authorizaiton is imposed.						